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VI. Sample Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 

 

Governmental entities are often required to request bids when contracting for services, to ensure the 

contracting process is open and accountable, available to all qualified vendors, and an appropriate use 

of taxpayer resources. In a contract counsel system, however, awarding a contract to the lowest 

financial bid will not satisfy constitutional requirements, if that bidder is not qualified to represent youth 

in delinquency proceedings. 

 

Instead of using a bidding process based on potential contractors’ financial requirements, often called a 

Request for Proposals (RFP), contract counsel managers should issue a Request for Qualifications (RFQ), 

a request for bids based on a potential contractor’s qualifications to provide representation to youth in 

delinquency proceedings. The RFQ process allows government agencies to award contracts to attorneys 

whose experience and training meet minimum qualifications and the jurisdiction’s standards for juvenile 

defense counsel, rather than tying the agency to the lowest financial bid. 

 

In an RFQ, the contracting agency issues a request for bids that includes the minimum qualifications and 

any preferred qualifications it seeks in contractors. The application or bid submitted by a potential 

contractor is then focused on how the applicant meets those qualifications. 

 

The following sample RFQ may be useful to jurisdictions to use as a basis for local solicitations. 
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Request for Qualifications 

 

 

[JURISDICTION] is issuing this Request for Qualifications to identify qualified defense attorneys to 

provide representation to children facing delinquency charges in [JURISDICTION] Juvenile Court. 

Interested applicants should submit their qualifications, using the outline below, by [DATE]. 

 

Minimum Qualifications 

 

 Graduate of fully accredited law school 

 Licensed by the [STATE ATTORNEY LICENSING AUTHORITY] 

 Member in good standing of [STATE ATTORNEY LICENSING AUTHORITY] 

 [XX] years of delinquency defense experience 

 

Preferred Qualifications 

 

Training and experience in the following areas: 

 

 Delinquency law and procedure  

 The role of expressed-interest counsel in delinquency proceedings 

 Child and adolescent development 

 Youth competence to stand trial 

 Communicating with and counseling youth clients 

 Probable cause and detention advocacy in delinquency court 

 Fourth Amendment challenges and youth 

 Challenging youth statements 

 Guilty pleas and counseling youth clients 

 Disposition advocacy 

 Defending against transfer to adult court 

 Defending juvenile sex cases 

 Immigration consequences for youth 

 Collateral consequences of delinquency court involvement 

 Special education issues 

 Defending against school-based offenses 

 Adolescent mental health, trauma, and resiliency 
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APPLICATION 

 

 

GENERAL 

 

Name: 

Address: 

Email address:  

Phone:  

Bar admission date: 

Bar number: 

 

 

LEGAL BACKGROUND 

 

Number of years and location(s) of legal practice: 

Type of legal practice: 

Percentage of practice that is delinquency defense: 

 

 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING 

 

Please list the counties, names of the courts, and number of delinquency cases per court you have 

accepted during the past three years: 

 

What percentage of your legal practice currently involves handling: 

 Delinquency cases: 

 Criminal cases: 

 Other cases: 

o Probate: 

o Dependency: 

o Family: 

o Civil: 

o Other: 

 

What percentage of your practice involves handling public defense cases? 

 

What other types of legal work do you do? 
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Please provide any relevant CLE you have attended or presented in the last two years. 

 

Topic Number of Hours Presented or Attended Sponsor 

    

    

    

    

    

 

Please explain your process for remaining current on relevant caselaw:  

 

 

 

 

REPRESENTATION/AREAS OF PRACTICE 

 

For each category, please indicate the approximate number of cases in which you have provided: 

 Representation of children in delinquency matters: 

 Trial advocacy: 

 Representation in post-dispositional hearings or appeals: 

 

On your last five juvenile delinquency cases, how much time did you spend with each client? 

 

Where did you meet with your clients? 

 

 

JUVENILE ADVOCACY 

 

Please select three recent cases where you feel your representation led to a positive outcome for your 

client and provide the court, case number, case name, and a brief description (redacting any non-public 

or confidential information): 

 

Please provide at least three sample motions you have filed on behalf of your youth clients in the last 

year (redacting any non-public/confidential information). 

 

Please provide three names with contact information of judges and/or attorneys who would be able to 

comment on your experience handling juvenile delinquency cases: 

 

If you are experienced in juvenile court practice, are you willing to serve as a mentor for a new or less 

experienced attorney? 
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EMPLOYMENT 

 

Please attach a resume with your employment and education history, including:  

 Title 

 Business type 

 Supervisor’s name 

 Supervisor’s contact info 

 Dates of employment 

 Duties and responsibilities 

 

 

PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

Have you even been disbarred, suspended, reprimanded, censured, admonished, or otherwise formally 

disciplined publicly or privately as an attorney? 

 

 If yes, please explain: 

 

Has a city, county, state or federal court ever entered a finding of guilty or sufficient facts to warrant a 

finding of guilty against you in a criminal offense? 

 

 If yes, please give particulars: 

 

Are you currently on probation or do you have any criminal charges pending against you in any court? 

 

 If yes, please describe: 

 

Are any charges or complaints now pending before any court or agency concerning your conduct as an 

attorney or as a member of any profession? 

 

 If yes, please explain: 

 

Has there ever been a motion or a complaint filed that has alleged your ineffective assistance of 

counsel? 

 

 If yes, please give particulars: 
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OTHER MEMBERSHIPS AND ACTIVITIES IN PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS 

 

Please list any professional organizations, including name, dates of membership, and any offices held: 

 

Please list any other organizations or associations you are a member of, including name, dates of 

membership, and any offices held: 

 

Please provide any other relevant experience (volunteer work, legal clinic experience, etc.): 

 


